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Healthcare Locums Ltd

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group's ambition 1s to be a market leader working closely with local health authonties and private
healthcare providers to deliver quality workforce solutions and help them achieve their objechives of
delivering world class healthcare services

Strategy

The Group's strategy is to align its service delivery to its chents, providing healthcare staff to high
standards of climcal capability In working with clients the Group will develop solutions to deliver
management control and workforce transparency to enable our clients to deploy their workforce efficiently
and cost effectively,

in the UK tha NHS Trusts represent a large part of the Group's market, supplemented by local authories
and private providers In Australia the healthcare market has a different structure, being approximately half
public and half pnvate

The UK Group has aligned its servica delivery to the NHS through the varnous framework agreements and
each of its operating divisions has a place on most or all of the available frameworks The UK business
has secured a number of Master Vendor and Neutral Vendor contracts delivered through HCL Clanty, our
Managed Services division

In Australia public healthcare provision is organised by State and the Group 1s an approved panel supplier
fo all but two of the States in the country

Across the Group our clients are seeking technology solutions  Our Managed Services division, HCL
Clanty offers our clients a range of workforce managemant solutlons developed with our technology
partner Skillstream. We are able to provide a fully integrated solution from e-rostering to agency
management.

Business Review

Group

The Group reported revenue for the year of £164 7m (2012 £196 8m) and the adjusted EBITDA for the
year was a loss of £1 9m (2012 £1 4m)

The reported loss from continuing operations was £17 6m (2012 £44 4m) after impairment of goodwill,
intangible assets and excepiional operating expenses

The main exceptional costs {note 6) in the 52 weeks ended 29 December 2013 relate to the reorganisation
and refinancing of the HCL group in order to de-list the company and make 1t private as well as costs
associated with nght sizing the overhead base There were also legal fees incurred defending claims
brought against the Company as disclosed in Note 23

The board monitors performance closely throughout the year The principal financial indicators are gross
margin per head, team contnbution per head and team gross margin conversion to contribution Non
financial indicators include converston of applicants to working locums and compliance with framework
requirements

The KPI data as stated above are disclosed In the table below.
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Kealthcare Locums Ltd

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Total UK

2013 2012
Gross profit per
head £m 0o7 007
Team
contrbution per 003 003
head £m
Gross profit 38%  40%

conversion to
contribution %

UK

The UK business has spent the last 3 years transforming operations to be able to offer lowear margins (n
return for the potential of significantly ligher volumes During 2013 the UK business made significant

savings in both front office and back office costs and the business is now well placed for growth

The table below summarises UK trading performance.

2013 2012
£m £m

Revenue 826 873
Gross Profit 171 18 8
Gross Profit % 20 7% 21 5%
Divisional Costs (10 6) (11 2)
Central Costs (excl depreciation, {10 6) (12 5)
amorhsation and share based
payments or credits)
Adjusted EBITDA - UK (41 (49)

Australia

The Australian business suffered a significant slow down in demand from clients in both the public and
private sectors throughout the second half of 2012 and this continued into 2013 The business continues_. fo

focus on quality and clinical governance as the mainstays of its sarvice

While the market remains challenging, performance improved in the second half of 2013 as the business
adapted to changed market conditions and a fuil review of the cost base resulted in significant savings in

the second half

The table below summarnises trading performance In Austraha

2013 2012
£m £m

Revenue 821 108 5
Gross Profit 16 1 20.9
Gross Profit % 19 6% 19 1%
Operating Expenses {excluding 139 17.4
depreciation & amortisation)
Adjusted EBITDA - Austraiia 22 35
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Healthcare Locums Lid

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Nursing Agency represents 90% of revenue (2012- 88%) and the locum Doctors and Permanent Nurses
divisions account for the balance Nursing Agency contributed 88% of gross profit {2012. B8%)

Capital Structure

Following a recommended cash offer for Healthcare Locums plc by Angei Acquisttions Limited, the
company delisted in June 2013 and changed its name to Healthcare Locums Ltd in October 2013

After the de-listing of the Company's shares from the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock
Exchange the following accurred

« the Company issued £5m of 8% Loan Notes 2021 to Angel Acquisitions in return for £5m cash

- the terms of a funding commitment letter under which the Company couid draw down uptoa
further £5m from Angel Acquisitions by issuing further 8% Lean Notes 2021 became effective

«  the agreed amendments to the senior faciliies agreement with the company's lending banks
bacame effective

+  the agreed amendments to the terms of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes 2021 became effactive.
£5 1m of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes 2021 were replaced with £56.1m of 8% Loan Notes 2021 At
the point the exchange took place the value of the zero loan notes stood at £1 7m The vanance of
valuations of £3 5m was transferrad to the equity reserve

+  upder the terms of the June 2013 resfructuring agreement the banks raquirad that all 8% loan
notes be converted to preference shares 6 manths from the day of issue. As this term was always
In effect the 8% loan notes are deemed equity from the outset and not classed as financial
mstruments

. ail advisor and legal costs that were incurred in completing tha refinance were included 1n
exceptional finance costs, note 8.

in August 2014, Tosca Opporturity (Tosca) and Ares Capital Europe (Luxembourg) Sarl (Ares), the owners
of Angel Acquisitions, provided loan capital ta the Group to repay A$18 7m (E10 3m) of the then
outstanding A$57 Om (£31 5m) syndicated facilities agreement Tosca and Ares purchased the balance of
the facility, These facllities are currently repayable by 31st December 2017

The transaction leaves the Group's capital structure In a more stable position with no external debt other
than that due to the parent company, Angel Acquisitions, and the ultimate shareholders

Further details of the Company's funding structure can be found in notes 17 and 20 of the financial
statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board considers the principal risks facing the business as part of the annual budgeting process and
quarterly re-forgcasting exercises

The prncipal nisks and uncertainties currently Judged to have the largest potential impact on the Group’s
financial performance and reputational standing are descnbed below




Healthcare Locums Ltd

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Risk
Availahbility of Finance

The Group 1s dependent on the continuing availability of finance from its parent company, Angs!
Acquisitions Limited At 28 December 2013 the Group had given undertakings {o its banks, including
financial covenants Failure to meet these covenants and to make good the shortfall by means of an
“equity cure” from the parent company would have enabled the banks to demand early repayments of the
loans In August 2014 the shareholders of Angel Acquisitions loaned the Company £16 1m to fund part
repayment of the bank loans and purchased the remaining loan from the banks The £16 1m loan is due
for repayment by 31st December 2017 and carnes no financial covenants

Relationships with Key Gustomers

Customer relationships and compliance with contract terms are essential to the Group’s performance In
the UK the majonty of the Group’s revenue comes from the NHS through the framework agreements In
Australa the Group 1s an approved “Panel” supplier of agency nurses to the public health system Both
pubhc and private sector contracts in the UK and Austrahia contain Key Performance Indicator targets and
may include termination nghts if targets are not met

Clinical Governance and Compliance

The Group has obligations under contracts and in some circumstances under legislation to supply locums
to specified standards of clinical capability and to make checks before locums are placed In roles These
Compliance requirements are extensive in many cases Failure to complete and maintain those checks
could lead to legal, financial and reputational consequences

IT Systems and Security

The Group relies on computer systems to delver its services to customers Any matenal disruption to
these systems will impact revenues as lost time for locum supplies cannot be replaced

Exchange Rate

The Group's operations are principally located in the UK and Australia Local revenues are accounted for
in local currency  The reporting currency of the Group 1s Sterling

The Steriing value of the Australian results depends on the exchange rate used to translate the results of
overseas operations The Group’s bank debt was denominated in Australian Dollars and the Sterling value
fluctuates with the exchange rate to Stering Foreign exchange risk 1s descnbed more fully in Note 20

Potential Impact from Past Events, Including Litigation

As described in Note 23 a claim by certain US investors has been filed in the State of New York against the
Company and certain of its former directors

Whilst the Board has been advised that 1s unlikely any judgement would be recognised as enforceable In
either the UK or Australia because of a lack of junisdiction, should this advice be incorrect, an adverse
ruling could result In a matenal loss for the Group

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

M&AA/\?

Michael Dennis
Director 03 December 2014
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group and each of the trading subsidianes s that of providing workforce
solutions to the healthcare and social care sectors The Board's intention Is that this will remain the
business of the Group for the foreseeable future

The subsidiary undertakings pnncipally affecting the profits or net assets of the Group In the year are listed
in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

Future Developments
All future developments are covered in the Strategic Report

Dividends

No dividends wera pald m 2013 and the Directors are not proposing a final dvidend for 2013

Financlal Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's objectives and policies in respect of financial nsk management and associated risks are set
out in Note 20, Financial Instruments

Disabled Persons

The Group's and the Company's policy is to consider the applications of disabled workers for those
vacancies that they are able to fill All necessary assistance with inttial fraining courses is given Once
employed, a career plan 1s developed so as fo ensure suitable opportunities for each disabled person
Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable
them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities

Employee Involvement

The Group’s policy is to consult and discuss with employees and employee engagement forums on matters
Iikely to affect employses' interests Healthcare Locums Ltd has an employee forum that meets
penodically to consider such matters. Information on mafters of concern to employees is given through
informatian builetins and reports which seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees
of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance

Going Concern

The Company and Group’s strategy, business activities and review, together with the factors likely to affect
its future development, performance and financial position are set out In the Strategic Report on pages 2 to
4. The improved capital structure following the August 2014 purchase and extension to 31 December 2017
of the Group's syndicated faciliies agreement by the owners of Angel Acquisitions is set out In the
Strategic Report on page 4 The transaction will leave the Group's caprtal structure in a mare stable
position with no external debt other than that due to the parent company, Angel Acquisttions, and the
ultimate shareholders Principal nsks and uncertainties are described on pages 4105 Inadddtion, the
Group has certain contingent liabilities, as descnibed In Note 23 to these financial statements.

The Group prepares regular business forecasts and monitors its projected cash flow reqmremepts These
forecasts are reviewed by the Board. These forecasts are then flexed to reflect more conservative views on
revenues and margins, and take into account management actions which could be taken to contain costs
In these circumstances it is also the group's intention to sell the MPS business towards the end of 2015
This sale 1s expected to generate £2 3m worth of cash which will assist the future working capital
requirements
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

These forecasts indicate that the Group plans to operate within its current facilities for the foreseeable
future, being a penod of at least twelve menths from the date of approval of this financial information The
forecasts, however, assume no liability In respect of the US Iitigation duning the review penod, nor in
respect of any of the other contingent liabilities described n Note 23

Having taken account of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the
Group will have access to adequate resources to continue In operatlonal existence for the foreseeable

future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng the annual financial
statements

Directors

The Directors who served during the year and to the date of this report, together with the date they were
appointed or left the Board was as follows

Date of
appointment (if
after 30 December Date of

Director Position 2012) resignation
Peter Sullivan Non-executive Chairman - -
Stephen Burke Chief Executive Officer - -
Jason Carfwnight  Chief Executive Officer Australia 28 June 2013

lan Ketchin Chief Financial Officer 4 March 2014

Mark Phillips MNon-executive Dhrector 3 June 2013 -
Michael Denmis Non-execufive Director 3 June 2013 -
Danisl Sinclair Non-executive Director 3 June 2013 -

Sue Bygrave Chief Finance Officer - 30 June 2013
Andrew McRae Managing Director Australia - 16 Aprii 2013
David Henderson  Non-executive Director - 03 June 2013
Mark Andrews Non-exgcutive Director - 03 June 2013

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance

Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries benefit from Directors’ and Officers’ iability
insurance cover in respect of legal actions brought against them |n addition, Directors of the Company are
indemnified in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Assaciation, to the maximum extent permuited by
law Neither the nsurance nor the indemnities provide cover where the relevant Director or Officer has
acted fraudulently or dishonestly The US litigation, against the Company and its former directors, as
referred to in Note 23, may not be covered under the existing Directors’ and Officers’ liabihty insurance
cover This is because the Plaintiffs’ arguments revolve around the alleged dishonesty or misleading
conduct of former directors None of the cuent Directors are a party to this claim

Related Party Transactions

Details of related parly transactions, including transactions with close family members of former directors,
are set outn Note 26 to the financial statements
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Disclosure of Audit Information

As required by Section 418 (2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confims that, as at the
date this report was approved, so far as each Director 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit information of
which the independent Auditor 1s unaware and that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that the
Independent Auditar is aware of that information

Auditor

Grant Thomnton UK LLP was appointed as the auditor to the Company during 2013 Marc Summers is the
Senior Statutory Auditor

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of post balance sheet events are set outn Note 28 to the financial statements.

Cautionary Statement

A Company's Annual Report is required, among other matters, to contarn a fair review by the Directors of
the Group's business, through a balanced and comprehensive analysis of the development and
performance of the business of the Group and the position of the Group at the year end, consistent with the
size and complexty of the business The Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared
only for the shareholders of the Company as a whole, and therr sole purpose and use I1s to assist
shareholders to exercise their governance nghts In particular, the Directors’ Report, and the Strategic
Report have not been audited or otherwise independently verifiad The Company and its Directors and
employees are not responsible for any other purpose or use or to any other person in relation to the Annual
Report

These Reports and Statements contain indications of likely future developments and other forward-ioqklng
statements that are subject to risk factors associated with, among other thungs, the economic and business
circumstances occurmng from time to tme 1n the countries, sectors and business segments in which the
Group operates These factors include, buf are not Iimrted to, those discussed under Principal Risks and
Uncertainties i the Sirategic Report

These and other factors could adversely affect the Group's resuits, strategy and prospects Forward-
looking statements involve nisks, uncertainties and assumptions They relate to events and/or depend on
circumstances n the future which could cause actual resulis and outcomes to differ matenally from those
currently anticipated No obligation I1s assumed to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

M.

Michael Dennis
Director
03 December 2014




Healthcare Locums Ltd

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report and Report of the Directors and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors fo prepare financral statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors have electad to prepare the financial statements In accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the stale
of affairs and profit or loss of the company and group for that penod In preparng these financial
statements, the directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- IFRSs have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained n the
financia! statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is (nappropnate to presume
that the company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other regulanties

The directors confirm that
. So far as each director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditor 1s unaware, and
»  the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors 1n order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor Is
aware of that information

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
ncluded on the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

To the best of our knowledge
+  the group financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
company and the undertakings included in the consalidation taken as a whole, and
+  the strategic report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the company and the undertakings included in the consohdation taken as a
whole, together with a descnption of the pnncipal risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the B

M - ANCAS
Michael Dennis
Director

03 December 2014
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Healthcare Locums Limited for the 52 weeks ended 29
December 2013 which comprise consolidated statement of comprehensiva income, consolidated statement
of financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
notes to the financial statements and the parent company balance sheet. The financial reporling
framework that has been appiied m the preparation of the Group financtal statements s applicable law and
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unien. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To
tha fullest extent permitted by law, we do nat accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this repott, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibifities Statement set out an page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility Is to audit and express an opmion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicabie law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audrtors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audtt of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Councii's website at www fre org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinlon on financial stataments
In our opinion.

+  the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent
company's affairs as at 29 December 2013 and of the group's loss for the 52 weeks then ended,

+  the Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companles Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the report of the directors for the financial
year for which the Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial
statements.
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Healthcare Locums Lid

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20086 requires us to
report to you If, in our opiaion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

G:DJfﬂng e LT

Marc Summers FCA

Senior Statufory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP,
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

05 December 2014
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2013

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29 December 30 December
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Revenue 164.7 196 8
Cost of sales {131.5) {157 1)
Gross profit 33.2 3e7
Operating expenses (40.1) {47 5}
Highlighted items
Goodwill and intangible assets impatrment 11,12 (8.1} (36 0)
Nat exceptional operating expenses B (2-6) (0 6) |
Total operating expenses {50.8) (841)
Loss from operations 7 (17.6) {44.4)
Finance income 8 0.6 03
Finance expense 8 (5.9) (55)
Loss before taxation from continulng operations (229) (49 6)
Tax benefit from continuing operations 9 0.1 66
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (22.8) (43.0)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit & loss
Translation adjustment 32 01
Total other comprehensive Income 32 0.1

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the
owners of the parent (19.6) (429)

The Notes are an integral part of thesa Financial Statements




Healthcare Locums Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 29 DECEMBER 2013

29 December

30 December

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assefs
Goodwill 11 11.1 172
Other intangible assets 12 247 342
Property, plant and equipment 13 14 23
37.2 537
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 197 218
Current tax receivable 93 .
Cash and cash equivalenis 49 93
251 311
Total assets 62.3 848
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitles
Trade and other payables 18 (17.5) (18 9}
Current portion of long term borrowings 17 (0.7) (13)
Derivative financial instruments 20 {0 6) (17
Deferred consideration 18 (0.2) -
Pravisions 18 {2.0) (17
(21 0) (236)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 17 (32.2) (388)
Deferred tax liabihty 19 (2.8) (33)
Provisions 18 (1.3) (21)
(36 3) (44 2)
Total liabitities (57.3) (67 8)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5.0 17.0
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
PARENT
Share capital 21 1053 848
Share premium reserve 22 55.2 652
Share option reserve 22 - 12
Equity reserve 22 {(12.9) -
Translation reserve 22 3.4 02
Retained loss 22 (146.0) (124 4)
TOTAL EQUITY 5.0 170

The Notes ara an Integral part of these Financial Statements

The Financial Statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 03

December 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

M DA~

Michael Dennis
Director
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Healthcare lLLocums Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 29 DECEMBER 2013

52 weeks
ended
29 Year ended
December 30 December
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities -
Loss for the year (22 8) (430)
Adjustments for
(Gain) / loss on fair value changes in contingent consideration . ©1
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 1.0 07
Amortisation of intangible assets 40 57
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 03
Goodwill imparrment 59 224
Impairment of other infangible assets 2.2 136
Finance Income {0.8) (0.3)
Finance expense 5.9 55
Corporation tax credit (0.1) (66)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working capital (4.5) (18)
Changes in receivables 24 50
Changes in payables (2.4) (48)_
Cash used in operations (4.8) (16)
Corporation tax received - 38
Net cash flows used in operating activities (4.8) 2.2
Investing activities.
Interest receved . 03
Contingent and deferred consideration paid - (14)
Capital element of lease payments (0.1 (04)
Acquisiton of property, plant and equipment (0.4) (12)
Acguisition of intangible assets {1.0) (0.7)_
Net cash (used In) investing activities (1.5) (34)
Financing activities
Cash recewved from shareholders in respect of preference shares issued 60 -
Repayment of borrowings (0.8} -
Interest and similar expenses paid {3.6) (37)
Net cash from / {used In) financing activities 1.6 (CXAN
Net {(decreass) In cash and cash equivalents (4.7 49)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.3 142
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 03 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.9 93
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
Share Share option Equity Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve loss Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2012 848 552 12 - 01 (81.4) 599
Loss for the year - - - - - (43 0) (43 0)
Other comprehensive Income - - - - 01 - 0
Baiance at 30 December 2012 84.8 552 1.2 . 0.2 (124.4) 17.0
Loss for the year - - - - - (22.8) (22 8)
Share option reserve transferred - - (1.2) - - 12 il
Other comprehensive income - - - - 3.2 - 3.2
Preference shares converted
from loan notes 20.5 . - - - - 20.5
Preference share conversion
equity reserve - - - (129) - - {12.9)
Balance at 29 December 2013 105.3 55.2 - (12.9) 3.4 (146.0) 5.0
The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
o T pPage |15



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Healthcare Locums Ltd (formerly Healthcare Locums pic) is a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under
the Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act”) The registered office 1s 10 Old Bailey, London EC4M 7NG The Company
was listed on the Alternative Investment Market ("AIM") of the London Stock Exchange until 3 June 2013 As itis
no longer listed certain disclosures required under the Listing Rules of AIM are no longer reported The nature of
the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out In the Report of the Directors on page 6 to 8 and In
the Strategic Review on pages2t0 5

The primary financial statements and the majonty of figures in the notes are presented in Pounds Sterling {“E%)
because that is the currency of the pnmary econormic environment in which the Group operates, Where it 1s
considered useful and appropnate, certan figures for the operations of the Australian business are disclosed n
the notes in Australian Dollars (*A$")

Overseas operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin Note 3

The Group's accounting period 1s 52 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to 31 December Semg reporting
periods in the future will be 53 week periods This ensures the statutory reporiing timetable is 1n ine with the
management reporting cycle

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In 1ssue but not effective for pertods commencing on 1 January 2013 and 1 July 2013 New standards and
interpretations currently in Issue (as at 29 September 2014) but not effective for accounting penods
commenctng on 1 January 2013 and 1 July 2013 are

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {IASB effective date 1 January 2018)*

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (IASB effective date 1 January 2013*)

- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements {IASB effective date 1 January 2013**)

- |FRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities (IASB effective date 1 January 2013")

- IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective 1 January 2016)**

- IFRS 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2017)

- 1AS 27 (Revised), Separate Financial Statements (IASB effective date 1 January 2013*)

- IAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Assoctates and Joint Ventures {(JASB effective date 1 January 2013*%)

_ Transiton Guidance - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (IASB effective date 1 January
2013*)

- Investment Entities - Amendments to {FRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 27 {effective 1 January 2014)

- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financlal Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 (effective 1 January 2014)

- IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IASB effective 1 January 2014yt

_ Recoverabls Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36) (effective 1
January 2014)

. Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to 1AS 39) (effective 1
January 2014)

Defined Banefit Plans. Employee Contnbutions (Amendments to IAS 19} (IASB effective date 1 July
2014y

_ Amendments to IFRS 11. Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (IASB sffective
date 1 January 2016)™

_ Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation — Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS
38 {IASB effective date 1 January 2016y

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (effective 1 July 2014)M

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (effective 1 July 2014)~0

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (effective 1 January 2016)"

- Amendments to IAS 16 and AS 41. Bearer Plants (effective 1 January 2016)**

- Amendments to JAS 27* Equity Method in Separate Financlal Statements {effective 1 January 201 gy

_ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (effective 1 January 2016

** EU mandatory effactive date 1s 1 January 2014 not 2013 Hence, where an enlily follows the EU sffedive date, it will include these
standards i its list of standards In sssue not yet effective in its 2013 accounts

## EU mandatory effactive date is financlal years starting on or after 17 June 2014
AA Not adopted by the EU (as at 29 September 2014}
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Basis of accounting

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union ("EU”)

The Consolidated Financral Statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for derivative
financial Instruments which are stated at their farr value Historical cost is generally based on the faw value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting palicies adopted are set out below

(b) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to the Sunday closest to 31 December each year Control 1s achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating polictes of an investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activilies

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary
the accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group All
intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elimmated on consolidation

{c} Going concern

The Company and Group's strategy, business activittes and review, together with the factors Iikely to affect its future
development, performance and financial position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 2to 4 Ttie improved
capital structure following the August 2014 purchase and extension ta 31 December 2017 of the Group's syndicated
facilities agreement by the owners of Angel Acquisitions is set out In the Strategic Report on page 4 This transaction

will leave the Group's capttal struciure it a more stable position with no external debt other than that due to the

parent company, Angel Acguisitions, and the ulimate shareholders Principal isks and uncertainties are described |
on pages 4 to 5. In addition, the Group has certain contingent liabllities, as described In Note 23 to these financial
statements

The Group prepares regular business forecasts and moniors its projected cash fiow requirements These forecasts
are reviewed by the Board These forecasts are then flexed to reflect more conservative views on revenues and \
margins, and take into account management actions which could be taken to contamn costs‘ln these circumstances
It 1s also the group's intention to sell the MPS business towards the end of 2015 This sale is expected to generate
£2 3m worth of cash which will assist the future working capital requirements

These forecasts Indicate that the Group plans to operate within its current faciities for the foreseeable future, being |
a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of this financial information The forecasts, however,
assume no hability in respect of the US litigation during the review peried, nor in respect of any of the other

contingent habilities described in Note 23

Having taken account of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The consideratton for
each acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, habilities
Incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as mncurred

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition Includes any asset or liability resuling from a contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value Subseguent changes In such fair values are
adjusted against the cost of acqursition where they qualify as measurement perod adjustments (see below) All
other subsequent changes n the farr value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or habi!lty are
accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as
equity are not recognised

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent hiabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
IFRS 3(2008) are recognised at their farr value at the acquisition date, except that

« deferred tax assets or liabiltties and liabiities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured In accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes and IAS 19 — Employee Benefits
respectively, and




3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

« liabilities or equity instruments refated to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards are measured m accordance with IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment

The measurement pened I1s the penod from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obfains comgiete
nformation about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date, and is subject to a maximum of one
year

{¢) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amounts eamed from the proviston of services to external customers during the reporting
period — the time of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
and when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group Revenue s stated at invoiced amounts
less value added tax or local taxes on sales, pius revenue earned but unbilled which Is included as accrued income
in trade and other receivables

Revenue from temparary placements, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff, is

»  recognised when the services have been provided Revenue includes the salary costs of the temporary staff
unless paid directly by the client In which case revenue represents commission only, and
Revenue from permanent placements (s recogrised at the date when a candidate commences work

»  Appropnate provision is made for the expected cost of meeting obligations where employees do not work for
the specified contractual penod

(f) Foreign currency

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into Sterling at average rates All assets and
liabilihes of overseas operations, including goodwill anising on the acquisttion of those operations, are transiated at
the rate ruling at the period end. All exchange differences ansing on translation are recogmsed in the Consohdated
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the transiation reserve

In preparing the financial statements of each individuai group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity'’s
functional currency {foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
fransactions At the end of each reporting penod, monetary ifems denonunated in foreign currencles are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date, Non-monetary items carmed at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the far value was determined. Mon-monetary
terns that are measured In ferms of histoncal cost In a foreign currency are not retranslated.

(g) Share-based payments

The Group operated an equity-settied, share-based compensation plan which ceased dunng the year at the point
the company de-listed and became private When share options are awarded to employees, a charge 15 made to
profit or loss recognising on a straight line basis the fair value at date of grant of the options issued over the vesting
period with a coresponding adjustment to the share eplion reserve, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, The options vest after a specific period (3 years for options 1ssued from
2006 onwards, 1 year for options 1ssued earlier). There are no cther vesting conditions, other than that the options
lapse should the employee leave the Group. The cumulative expense is adjusted for failure to achieve non-market
vesting conditions, such as an employee leaving At the point the company de-listed all share options were
cancelled and any share option reserve transferred to the P&L reserve

(h) Employee benefits

Contributions to the Group’s defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensiva Income in the penod in which they become payable

The hability for Long Service Leave in respect of employees 0 Australia is recognised by way of a provision and
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting penod using the projected unit credit method. Consideration 1s given to
expected future wage and satary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service Expected future
benefits payable more than 12 months after the pencd-end are discounted using market yields at the end of the
reporting period on national government bonds with terms to matunty and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outfiows Where data specific enough to calculate a provision as descnbed
above are not avallable praovision 1s made for Long Service Leave on an estimated basis

(i) Taxation

The charge for current taxation is provided at rates of corporation tax that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date Current tax 1s based on taxable profits for the year and any adjustments to tax
payable in respect of previous years Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax 1s provided, using the hiabiity method, on all temporary differences which result in an obligation at the
reporting date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date Temporary differences arise between the tax bases of
assets and liabilites and their carrying amounts in the financial statements The exceptions, where deferred tax
assets are not recognised nor deferred tax liabiltties provided, are

«  atmtial recognition of goodwill,

+ the nitlal recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction thatis not a business combination and, at the tme
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss, and

» taxable temporary differances associated with investments in subsidianes whera the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be available to allow ail or part of the deferred income tax assetto
be utiised

() Goodwill

Goodwill arising In 2 business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date) Goodwill Is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling Interest i the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previcusly held eguity interest (if any) In
the entity over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilites assumed
If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair vafue of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity Interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess 1s recognised immediately in the
Cansoclidated Statement of Comprehensive income as a bargain purchase gain

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for impanment at least annually For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill I1s allocated to each of the Group'’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combmnation Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, of
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impalred If the recoverable amount, being the value
in use or — where reliably measurable - farr value less costs to sell, of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carmying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is aliocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
ailocated to the umit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit An impaiment loss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed In a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal

(k} Other inftangible assets

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) acquired by the Group as part of a business combination are stated at far
value and are amortised on a straight-line basis over ther expected useful ives, commencing on the date they come
into use The amortisation is shown as part of operating expenses within the Consohidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Internally generated ntangible assets ansing from the Group’s development of software are recognised only if all of
the following condiions are met
*  an asset is created that can be (dentfied,
»  itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
»  the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably
The estimated useful lives are as follows

’

Customer relationships - Over the contractual term or 6 years in the absence of @ specified
term

Computer software - 3to5years
3to 10

Acquired candidate database - years

Brands/trademarks - 20 years

Non-compete agreements - Syears

Intangible assets, other than goodwll, with iIndefinite ives are subject to impairment tests whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that their camrying amount may not be recoverable When the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount, being the value in use or — where reliably measurable - far value less
costs to sell, the asset Is written down accordingly. Impairment of other intangible assets is included in total
operating expenses as a highfighted item in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{(l Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost As well as the purchase price, cost includes

directly attnbutable costs All items are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

imparment loss

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of property,

plant and equipment over their expected useful lives. It is calculated at the {following rates |
improvements to leasehold buildings - Over the lease term :

Office and computer equipment - 3to8years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

An asset's camrying amount 1 written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount 1s greater
than its estmated recoverable amount. Impairment reviews are camed out quartery throughout the year

{m} Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it 1s
impaired A financia! asset Is considered to be impaired If objechve evidence indicates that one or more events has
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset For certain categones of financial assets,
such as trade recewvables, assets that are assessed not to be mpared indwvidually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis, Objective evidence of impairment for a pertfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as
well as observable changes 1n national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on recelvables

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financlai assets with the
excephion of trade recevables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it 1s written off agamnst the allowance account Subsequent
recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised In the profit and loss

(n) Leased assets

Where substantially all of the nsks and rewards Incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to
the Group (a ‘finance lease’), the asset 1s treated as if it had been purchased outnght The amount inihially
recognised as an asset 1s the lower of the farr value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments payable over the term of the lease, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding
lease commitment 1s shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the finance lease obhgation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance expenses are recognised
immediately In the profit or loss

Ali other leases are treated as operating leases Their annual rentals are charged fo the Profit and Loss account on
a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease

{o) Sales ledger credits

From time to tme In the United Kingdom the Group receives payments which are in excess of the amounts which
the Group's accounting records show as due The reasons include duplicate payments, credit notes not taken by
customers and payments by customers who are “self biling” which are higher than our calculation of the amounts
due These matters are investigated and wherever possible the overpayments are resolved with the paying clhent
and appropnate accounting entries made I, after actively seeking to resolve the balance, It remans unresolved
beyond the periad set out in the Statute of Limitations (six years), the amaunt is credited to the profit or loss The
balance of sales ledger credits at the period end 1s shown within creditors

{p) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habihies are recognised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the nstrument

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabiliies into one of the following categones, depending on the purpose
for which the asset or hability was acquired The Group's accounting policy for each category Is as follows
Financial assets:

Recelvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They anse principally through the provision of services to customers {trade receivables} They are iniially
recogrised at fair value plus fransaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost Impairment provisions are
recognised where there is evidence that the Group wili be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms of
the receivable Trade receivables are reported net of iImpairment provisions, which due to the nature of the customer
base are not significant The Group's receivables that are financial assets compnse trade and other receivables,
excluding prepayments, in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Page |20



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, depostts held at call with banks and bank overdrafts Bank
overdrafts are shown within current liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and are included
within cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows

Derivative financial instruments; Denvatives, including the embedded denvative within the Zero Coupon Loan
Note, are initially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract Is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured at their fair value through the profit and loss unless the derivative is designated in a hedging
relationship.

At 29th December 2013 the Group held a number of interest rate instruments, protecting a portion of the Group's
borrowings against movements in interest rates Hedge accounting I1s applied to financial assets and financial
liabilities only where all of the following cntena are met
«  Atthe inception of the hedge there Is a formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship and
the Group’s nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge

«  For cash flow hedges, the hedged item Iin a forecast transaction presents an exposure to vanations In interest
cash flows that could ultmately affect profit or loss on their scheduled payment dates

+  The cumulative change In the value of the hedging Instrument 1s expected to be between 80-125% of the
cumulative change 1n the far value or cash flows of the hedged item attnbutable to the nsk hedged (1e 1itis
expected to be highly eifective}

e The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured

»  The hedge remains highly effective on each date itis tested The Group tests the effectiveness of its hedges
annually at the external reporing date

At 29 December 2013 the Group only held two derivative instruments which are not economic hedges, the interest
rate swaps as required as part of the Refinancing in September 2011 (Note 20)

Effective hedges which are used to manage cash flow interest rate sk and are designated cash flow hedges are
measured at farr value with changes in far value recognised directly in equity The gain or loss relating to any
Ineffective portion is recogrised directly in the profit and loss within finance income or expense When a hedging
instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets all the critena for hedge accounting, hedge
accounting 1s stopped immediately and any cumulafive gain or loss existing in equity at that tme remains n equity
and is recogrused when the forecast transaction I1s ulimately recognised in the profit and loss When a forecast
transactlon Is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the profit and loss within finance iIncome or expense

There were no new denvative financial Instruments entered into during the 52 weeks ended 29 December 2013 that
were effective hedges and therefore hedge accounting was not applied

Other financial liabilities:

Trade payables and other short-term monetary hiabiities These are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost

Zero coupon loan notes These are initially recognised at far value, being the present value at the time of 1ssue of
future cash payments to extinguish the instrument They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recogmsed on an effective yield basls.

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of allocating
interest over the relevant period The effechive interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropniate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying ameunt on nitial recognition

Bank borrowings These habilities are initially recognised at the amount advanced net of any transaction costs
directly attributable to the 1ssue of the instrument The costs of raising the financing are offset against the loan
amount and are amortised over the term of the loan and are included within finance costs on the face of the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income When loans are refinanced, drawings under the existing
facilities are either extinguished or modified Where faciliies are extinguished the balance of unamortised fees are
written off to Finance Expense Where modified, the unamortised fees are carried forward in the Consohdated
Statement of Financial Position to be wntten off over the term of the modified facilities

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilitles

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it Is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Provisions and contingent liabilities {continued}

The amcunt recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seftie the present
obligation at the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financtal Posttion, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties sumounding the obligation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash flows estmated to seitle the
present obligation, its carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows

Obligations ansing under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions An onerous contract 1s
cansidered to exist whare the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be receved under it

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructunng
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it The measurement of a restructuring provision includes
only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuning, which are those amounts that are both necessanly
entarled by the restructuring and not associated with the ongeing activities of the Group

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations which anse from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly wittin the controi of the
Group Provision is not made for any liability which could anse i the future, but significant contingent habilhies are
reported in Note 23

(r} Share capital

Financial Instruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
definition of a financial liability The Group’s ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity Instruments

{s} Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a ability in the year in which they are declared and approved by the Company’s
shargholders in the annual general meeting Intenm dividends are recognised when they are pad

(t} Parent company

The Financial Statements of the parent company Healthcare Locums Limited have been prepared in accordance
with UK GAAP The Company Financial Statements are presented separately on pages 46 to 55

{u) Highlighted items

Where certain items of operating expense or income recorded in a period are matenal by their size or incidence, the
Group reflects such items as highiighted items and these are shown separately i the Conschdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and disclosed in detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements Highlighted tems may
include costs associated with restructunng the business, mcremental costs of staff working directly on restructuring
and refinancing, one off gains and losses, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets In addiion amounts of
finance income or expense which are matenal by their size or incidence are disclosed in detail in the Notes to the
Financial Statements

(v) Adjusted operating profit and adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted operating profit 1s operating profit before share-based payments charges or credits and before highlighted
items The Board considers adjusted operating profit to be a better indicator of performance than operating profit as
highlighted tems, being exceptional in their nature by virtue of size or Incidence, distort the results of the underlying
business Adjusted EBITDA is adjusted operating profit before charging depreciation and amortisation

(w) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on historical expenence and other factors, ncluding expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances  In the future, actual expenence may differ from these estimates and
assumptions The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of cavsing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Measurement of intangible assefs The allocation of the purchase pnce for acquisitions requires management
to make significant estimates In determining fair values, especially for intangible assets and, until finally
determined, contingent consideration These estimates are based on histoncal experience, information
obtained from the management of the acquired businesses, relevant market and industry data and the forecast
performance of the acquired businesses These estimates can include, but ara net hmited to, the cash flows
that an asset Is expected to generate in the future, the appropriate discount rate and the useful lives of
intangible assets These estimates are inherently uncertain and unanticipated events and circumstances may
occur, which may affect the accuracy or validity of such astimates To assist in making these significant
estimates the Company engages expert professional valuers to assist with matenal acquisitions. Management
monitors the carrying values of assets and adjustments are made If anticipated future market conditions
indicate that such adjustments are appropriate

e m —— i e i e oot
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(w) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets The Group is required to test, on at least an annual basis,
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amount is determined based on the higher of
value 1n use calculations or the fair value less costs to sell method These both require the estimation of fuiure
cash flows and the chaice of a discount rate i order to calculate the present value of the cash flows Actual
outcomes may vary More nformation on the carrying amount of goodwill 1s ncluded in Note 11 and 12

Coniractual claims and regulatory contingencies The Group conducts its business principally in the UK and
Australia and contractual claims or regulatory proceedings may anise The Group estimates and provides for
potentai losses that may anse out of liigation and regutatory proceedings to the extent that such losses are
probable and can be estimated in agccordance with IAS 37 —~ Provisions, Contingent Liabiities and Contingent
Assets Contingencies in respect of these matters are subject to many uncertanties and the outcome of
individual matters 1s not predictable with assurance Significant judgment 1s required n assessing probability
and making estimates in respect of contingencies, and the Group’s final liability may uttimately be matenally
different from that estimated Provisions in respect of legal claims, confractual and regulatory proceadings are
determined on a case by case basis and represent an estimate of probable losses after considenng, among
other factors, the progress of each case, the Group's expenence of others in similar cases and the views of
lega!l counsel Where no estimate can be reliably made of the Ikely outcome of any claims, and they are
potentially material, those claims are disclosed as confingent habilities {Note 23}

Uncertain tax positions Uncertain tax pasitions may anse where the Directors have had to make particular
judgments in relation to certain tax freatments Based on the status of enquines with the relevant tax
authonties and consideration of tax legislation, the Group estimates and provides for potential losses that may
anise from uncertan Income tax positions to the extent that such losses are probable and can be estimaied, in
accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes However, significant judgment is required in making these estimates,

particularly in relation to the recovery of losses, and the Group's final habilities may ultimately be materially
different

Estimation of useful economic lives of long-lived assets The econormic Iife used to amortise intangible assets
and deprectate property, plant and equipment relates to the future performance of the assets in guestion and
management's judgment of the penod over which the economic benefit will be derwed from the asset

As at 29 December 2013, the amount of property, plant and equipment included in the Conschdated
Statement of Financial Position was £1 4m (2012 £2 3m)

As at 28 Decemnber 2013, the amount of intangible assets included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position was £24 7m (2012 £34 2m)

Employee benefits provision In Australia employees, including tocums, are entitled to long service leave after
10 years service (subject to specific rules and conditions which vary state by state). In determining the amount
of the employee benefits provision, representing the value of expected future payments to be made 1n respect
of services provided by employees up to the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financtal Posttion, the
Directors consider salary levels, the past experlence of employee departures and perods of service As at 29
December 2013, the amount provided for n the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position was £2 2m
{2012 £26m)

Zero Coupon Loan Notes The Zero Coupon Loan Notes were 1ssued dunng 2011 as part of the Refinancing
The nominal value of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to fair value at a rate of 15% which the
Directors considered fanly represented the return a non-senior lender would seek from the Company for a loan
maturing in September 2021, The Zero Coupon Loan Notes include an embedded denvative, Note 20, which
could lead to the 1ssue of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes for nil consideration The Directors assessed at the
date of 1ssue and at ali subsequent reporting dates the likelhood of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes being
1ssued If future EBITDA or enterpnise value targets are achieved.

8% Coupon Loan Notes The 8% Coupon Loan Notes were initially issued during 2013 as part of the
Refinancing agreement. The nominal value of the 8% Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to far value at a
rate of approximately 17% which the Directors considered fairly represented the return a non-senior lender
would seek from the Company for a loan matuning in September 2021, The agreement for the issue of the 8%
loan notes includes details fo convert into preference shares at a rate of £2 per £1 of loan note nominal vatue
plus any mputed interest at the time of conversion The conversion 1s completed mandatortly six months after
the I1ssue of the loan notes and as the intention from day one Is to convert to preference shares the loan notes
they are classed as equity The swap of debt to equity was part of the refinancing agreement agreed with the
shareholders. No gain or loss was recogrnised in the profit or loss
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4 EMPLOYEES

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 30 December
2013 2012
£m £m
Staff costs {Including Directors) compnse
Wages and salaries 2141 23.4
Social secunty costs 1.8 20
L.ong service leave costs 0.2 -
Defined contribution pension costs 0.8 10
23.9 26 4
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29 December 30 December
2013 2012
The average number of employees during the year was 438 543
5 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29 December 30 December
2013 2012
£m £m
Directors' remuneration consists of
Emoluments 1.3 11
Sums paid to third parties in respect of Directors’ services - 01
Benefits 0.1 02
1.4 1.4

The Board has determined that the Directors are the key management personnel
Pension contnbutions were paid in the year amounting to £6,500 (2012 £12,500)
The remuneration of the highest paid Director, including benefits, was £363,000 (2012 £451,000)

No options were granted to or exercised by Directors in either 2013 or 2012

The Directors, and thelr close family members, are related parties of the Company Other than as disclosed
above there are no other transactions to report with the Directors or their close family members.
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8 NET EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
29 December 30 December
2013 2012
£m £m
Exceptlonal operating (income)/expense:
Reorganisation and refinancing costs
Restructuring & refinancing costs 1.3 -
Resiructuring - employee costs — 1.1 l
24 -
(Gamn)floss on fair value changes in contingent and deferred consideration
{Note 14) - (01)
Investigation and resolution of accounting irregularities and legal costs
arising from histonc accounting iregularities 0.2 07
Net exceptional operating expenses 2,6 086

The main exceptional costs in the 52 weeks ended 29 December 2013 relate to the reorganisation and
refinancing of the HCL group tn order to de-list the company and make It private as well as costs assoclated
with nght sizing the overhead base There were also legal fees incurred defending claimms brought against the

Company as disclosed m Note 23

The tax effect of the above exceptional items is £l (2012 £nii)

7 LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations for the year has been amved at after charging the followsng

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Goodwill and mtangible assets impairment (Notes 11 and 12) 8.1 360

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) 4.0 57

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 1.0 07

Hire of other assets — operating leases 1.0 23

Loss / {gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 03
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for

- audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.2 03

- audit of the Company's subsidianies 0.1 02

- tax advisory services - 0.1
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8 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

Finance income £m £m

Interest receved on bank deposits - 01

Garn on far value changes m denvative financial instruments 0.6 -

Other - 02

06 03

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

Finance expense £m £m
Exceptional finance expense

Advisers and other fees regarding refinancing 1.4 0t

1.4 01

Bank loans and overdraits 34 37

Amortisation of fees 0.7 07

Foreign exchange losses . 02

Loss on fair value changes in denvative financial instruments - 02

Finance lease interest - 01

Imputed interest on Zero Coupon Loan Notes 0.3 04

Other 0.1 01

589 55

The exceptional finance expense during 2013 relate to the refinancing agreement completed in June The

costs relate to legal and advisor fees to complete the refinance

The Group does not apply cash flow hedge accounting to dervative financial instruments Accordingly, a!l

changes in the farr values of denvative financial instruments are recognise
of Comprshensive Income

d in the Consolidated Statement




9 TAX BENEFIT

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

UK corporation tax - current year (0.1) -

UK corporation tax - prior year - (08)

Current tax credit (0.1) {0 8)
Deferred tax

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - (17N

On impairment of intangible fixed assets - (4 1)

; (5 8)

Total tax benefit on continuing operations (0.1) (6 6)

The tax benefit assessed for the period Is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for the

52 weeks ended 29 December 2013 The differences are explained below

52 weeks 52 weeks
encied ended
29 December 30 December
2013 2012
£m £m
Loss before taxation (22 9) (49 6)
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23 25% {2012
24 5%) (5.4) (12 2)
Effects of*
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.0 68
Tax losses utilised 3.3 B
Timing differences 18 N
Over provision In prior years - (0 8)
Unrecognised potential deferred tax assets - 16
Impact of overseas tax rates (0.8) 20)
Total tax benefit for the year {0.1) (6 6)
Represented by:
Tax on continuing operations (1) (66)
(1 (66)
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10 DIVIDENDS
The Directors are not prapasing an interim or final dividend for 2013 (2012 no interm or final dividends)

11 GOODWILL

Total
£m

Cost:
At 1 January 2012 912
Effect of movements In foreign exchange (05}
At 30 December 2012 807
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (3-2)
At 29 December 2013 87.5
Impairment:
At 1 January 2012 514
Charge 1n the year 224
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (@3
At 30 December 2012 735
Charge In the year 5.9
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (3.0)
At 29 December 2013 76.4
Carrying amount;
At 29 December 2013 11.1
At 30 December 2012 172

The carrying amount 1s atinbutable to the followtng cash generating units ("CGUs") which are indvidual
businesses with separately identifiable cash flows

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

UK - Allled Health Professionals 2.0 20
UK - Nursing 9.1 13
Austraha - LML " 37
Australa - Nursing Agency - -
Total 11.1 172

The two UK CGUs are reported as separate segments to the chief operating decision maker Goodwill 1s
monitored at a fower level in Australia than the operating segment as defined under IFRS 8 and thus two
CGUs have been Identified The two Australian CGUs are both included within the single Australian
operating segment as the LML business 1s not of sufficient size to be reported as a separate segment to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker

At 29 December 2013 goodwill and intangible assets (Note 12) were tested for impairment Duning 2013 the
Group reviewed and revised its budgeting and ferecasting procedures and now routinely prepares both i
base case figures, reflecting management expectations, and a second version ("the lower range budget”)
reflecting the impact of a range, decided dvision by division, of factors such as reduced revenue growth
rates, reduced margins and delays in new mitiatives to boost revenues or reduce costs The recoverable
amounts of the above segments, and the intangible assets, were determined from value In use calculations
based on cash flow projections from the actual results post balance sheet for 2014 plus amounts forecasted
for the remainder of the year, lower range forecasts for 2015, 2016 and 2017 and estimates for subsequent
years
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11 GOODWILL (continued)

In addition the company has taken Into account an offer received for part of the UK nursing business in
September 2014 This resulted in an impairment of £2 3m within the UK Nursing cash generating unit

In determining the rate consideration was given to the Group weighted average cost of capital ("WACC™)
The key assumptions in the calculation of the WACC were

* Risk-free rate - 2 71% (2012 1 96%)

* Equity market nsk premium - 7 3% (2012 7 3%)

» Beta- 1 079 (2012. 1079)

» Small stock premium - 5 0% (2012 6 0%)

» Gross cost of debt, Inclusive of amortisation of fees, 12 88% (2012 11 62%)
» Expected long-term tax rate - 21% UK, 30% Austraka (2012 23% and 30%)
« Zero coupon loan notes discount rate 15% (2012 15 0%)

Use of those assumptions gave a pre tax WACC of 14 6% (2012 14 8%) which equates o a post-tax
WACC of 11.6% for the UK and 12 0% for Australia (2012. 11 4% and 10 8% respectively)

Reviewing the anticipated cost of the new funding being raised, as an indicator of the mast up to date cost
of capital, suggested the WACC was not the most rehable basis for calculating the discount rate to use, and
as a result the calculations were done using a pre-tax discount rate of 14 6% in the UK and 15 0% in
Australia {2012 15 6% and 18 6% respectively) -

The assumptions as to long term growth rates were 2 0% i the UK and 2 5% in Australia (2012 1% and
3% respectively) These rates are consistent with forecasts of economic growth in the respective countries

The results indicated that goodwill and other intangible assets were impaired i the UK by £2 3m (see
above) and imparred in Austraha a total of £5 8m (A$9 4m) The chief factor in the calculations which has
caused the Impatrments is, 1n each case, reduced revenue forecasts and reduced growth forecasts

It was determined that the imparment in Australia, which all related to the Doctors business, should be
allocated, in accordance with IAS 36, to goodwill £3 6m (A$5 8m), Brands and Trademarks £1 5m
(A$2 4m), Customer Relationships £0 6m (A$0 9m), and Non-compete Agreements £0 1m (A$0 2m)
{movements in other intangibles are shown in Note 12)




12 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired
Customer Computer candidate Brandsand Non-compete
relationships software  database trademarks agreements Total
Em £m £m Em £m £m

Cost:
At 1 January 2012 249 14 103 280 05 651
Additions - 07 - - - o7
Disposals (0 5) - - @1 - (06)
Reclassification - (02 - - - (02}
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange (0 5) - (0.2) (0 8) - 13
At 30 December 2012 23.9 1.9 1041 273 0.5 637
Additions - 0.7 - . . 0.7
Own costs capitalised - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Disposals - {0.1) - - - {0.1}
Effect of movements In
foreign exchange (2.9) {0.1) {1.3) (42) (01) (8.6)
At 29 December 2013 21.0 27 8.8 2341 0.4 56.0
Amortisation.
At 1 January 2012 69 10 15 1.7 01 112
Provided for the year 27 01 14 14 01 57
Imparment (Note 11) 43 - 20 73 - 136
Disposals (0 5) - - (01 - (0 6)
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange (02) - ©1) (01 - (04)_
At 30 December 2012 13.2 11 4.8 10.2 0.2 29.5
Provided for the year 1.6 03 10 16 0.1 40
Impairment (Note 11) 0.6 . “ 15 0.1 22
Disposals - (0.1) - . - 0.1
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange (1.6) - (0.7) (19) {0.1) (4.3)
At 29 December 2013 13.8 1.3 51 10.8 0.3 313
Carrying amount.
At 29 December 2013 7.2 1.4 37 123 0.1 247
At 30 December 2012 107 08 53 171 03 342

At 29 December 2013 computer software included £0 5m under construction (2012 £0 1m) The Group

amortises intangible assets from the date the assets are available for use
Assets reclassified to computer softiware were transferred from prepayments

As at 29 December the bank loans were secured on all assets of the Group

The asset lives of the matenal intangible assets have been assessed at 20 years for brands and trademarks
and 10 years for the main acquired candidate database Customer relationships are amortised over the iife of

the contracts
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Improvements  Office and
to leasehold  computer Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
£m £m £m E£m

Cost:
At 1 January 2012 15 28 01 44
Additions 08 06 - 14
Disposals (0 4) (04) 1) (0.9)
At 30 December 2012 19 3.0 - 4.9
Additions 0.3 01 - 0.4
Disposals (0.2) {(0.7) - (0.9}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.3) (0.1) - (04
At 29 December 2013 17 23 - 4.0
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2012 05 19 - 24
Provided for the year 03 04 - 07
Disposals (0.3) (©2) - (05)
At 30 December 2012 0.5 21 - 26
Provided for the year 06 0.4 . 1.0
Disposals 0.2 ©on - (0.9)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.1} - - {0.1)
At 29 December 2013 0.8 18 - 29
Carrying amount:
At 29 December 2013 09 0.5 . 1.4
At 30 December 2012 14 09 - 23

There are no assets included above held under finance leases (Note 17)

Bank loans are secured on all assets of the Group

14 ACQUISITIONS

During 2010, HCL complated 4 acquisiions The terms of the acquisiions included, in some cases,
confingent consideration and estimates were made as to the likely amounts payable under the contingent
consideration terms. During 2012 final settliement was made of contingent consideration amounts
accounted for as payable at 31 December 2011 As a result the following credits { (charges) were reported
withm nef exceptional operating costs in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Note 6)

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Final settlement of Onon / MJV contingent consideration - 01
- 01
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15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

29 December

30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade receivables 16.7 179
Other receivables 0.2 0.2
Prepayments 1.3 19
Accrued income 1.5 18
19.7 218

All amounts shown under recevabies fall due for payment within one year The ageing analysis of the trade
recaivables and the amounts denominated in currencies other than Sterling are set out in Note 20 There
are no differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of the trade and other recelvables at

erther reporting date

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29 December

30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade payables 0.4 09
Other taxes and soclal secunty 3.2 22
Accruals 6.4 80
Deferred iIncome 0.3 04
Sales ledger credits 3.0 38
Amounts owed to related parties 0.4 -
QOther creditors 3.3 o 36

17.5

18.9

There are no differences between the carrying amount and the farr value of the trade and other payables at

either reporting date
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17 LOANS AND LONG TERM BORROWINGS

29 December

30 December

2043 2012
£m £m
Current portion of long-term debt
Sterling denominated
Obhgations under finance leases - 01
Australian Doliar denominated.
Secured bank loans 1.3 19
Unamortised debt issue costs (0.6) Q7).
Total current horrowings 0.7 13
Non-current:
Sterling dencminated
Zero Goupon Loan Notes 17 30
Austrahan Doltar denominated
Secured bank loans 30.6 366
Unamortised debt issue costs (0.1) (08)
Total non-current borrowings 322 388

There are no differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of the loans and long-term

borrowings at either date

The Group did not capitalise any fees during 2013 Fees are amertised using the effective interest method

over the terms of the respective loans

The Zero Coupon Loan Notes are stated at farr value, being the fair value recognised at the date of issue
plus imputed interest to 29 December 2013 More details are set out in Note 20.

Future lease payments were due as follows

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m
Not later than one year 01 - 01
01 - 01
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18 PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Employee Onerous Total Deferred
benefits leases provisions consideration
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 28 20 48 1.8
Movement during the year -
Paid dunng the year (13 o7 (20) (+ 4}
Charged/{credited) to income statement 11 (03) 08 (0 1)
Leased property reinstatement provision
provided - 02 02
At 30 December 2012 26 1.2 38 -
Movement during the year
Charged/(credited) to income statement - - - 0.2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {0.4) (0.1)' (3.5) -
At 29 December 2013 22 1.1 3.3 0.2
At 29 December 2013
Current 1.7 0.3 20 0.2
Non-current 0.5 0.8 13 - -
At 30 December 2012
Current 15 02 17 -
Non-current 11 10 21 -

Employee benefits compnse long service leave benefits of £1,855,000 (2012 £2,176,000) and prowision for
paid leave of £280,000 (2012 £407,000) relating to the employees, including locums, of the Australian

operations

The onerous fease provision represents the future payments to which the Group is committed on properties
which were vacated pnor to 29 December 2013 The longest remaining lease term for any of the applicable
properties expires an 30 Apnl 2015 Due to the relatively short imeframe and the amounts involved, the future
payments have not been discounted as the impact would not be significant
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Other short
Intangible term
Tax fixed temporary
losses assets differences Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 (09) 130 (29 92
(Credited) / charged to profit or loss (Note 9) o7 (56) 05 (58)
Foreign exchange adjustment - {02 g1 (0.1)
At 30 December 2012 (1.8) 7.2 (2.3) 3.3
{Credited) / charged to profit or loss {Note 9) - - - -
Foreign exchange adjustment 0.2 {1.1) 0.4 {03)
At 29 December 2013 (1.4) 6.1 (1.9) 28

Duning the year, as a resuit of the changes in the UK corporation tax rate to 23% which was substantively
enacted on 3 July 2012 and was effective from 1 April 2013, and to 21% which was substantively enacted
on 2 July 2013 and will be effective from 1 April 2014, the relevant deferred tax balances have been re-
measured Daferred tax has therefore been calculated on UK and Australlan temporary differences at

23 25% and 30% respectively (2012 23% and 30% respectively) In addition to the changes In rates of
corporation tax disclosed above, further changes to the UK corporation tax rates were announced In the
2013 Autumn Statement and the March 2014 Budget These include further reductions to the mamn rate to
reduce the rate to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and to 20% from 1 April 2015 These changes had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financlal
statements The proposed reductions to the main rate of corporation tax are both expected fo be enacted
as part of the Finance Act 2013 The overall effect of these further changes, f appled to the deferred tax
balance at the balance sheet date, would be to further reduce the deferred tax liability by an additional
£29,000 (2012 £41,000)

The analysts of the net deferred tax balance between deferred tax assets and deferred {ax liabiibes 1s as

follows

29 December

30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Represented by deferred tax asset " B
Represented by deferred tax habilty 28 33

There are unrecognised deferred tax assets In respect of the follawing

items
29 December 30 December
2013 202
£m £m
UK tax losses 9.0 65
Other UK short term temporary differences - -
Accelerated capital allowances 038 08
Australian capital losses 0.7 36
Total 10.5 99

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable The group did not recognise the deferred iIncome tax assets
disclosed above. None of the tax losses have an expiry date

There are no temporary differences in relation to unremitted eamnings of overseas subsidiaries
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial mstruments comprise bank term loans, Zero Coupon Loan Notes, cash and interest
rate swap agreements and trade and other receivables and payables Balances at the year-end for these

financiat instruments were as follows.

Financial assets

29 December 30 December

2013 2012
£m £m
Current financial assets:

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 18.4 199
Cash and cash equivalents 4.9 93
Total current financial assets 23.3 292

Analysed by currency (GBP equivalent):
Pound Sterling 14.6 18 4
Australian Dollar 8.7 10.8
23.3 292

Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost

29 Daecember 30 December

2013 2012
£m £m
Current financial liahilities.
Trade and other payables excluding deferred income and taxes 14.0 16 3
Current portron of long term borrowings 0.7 13
Deferred consideration 02 -
Total current financial liablilities T 149 176
Non-current financial liabilities:
Long term borrowings 32.2 388
Total non-current financial liabilities 32.2 388
Analysed by currency (GBP equivalent):
Pound Sterling 12.2 140
Australian Dollar 38.1 44 6
50.3 586

Dervative financial liability
held at fair value through

pfOfit orloss
29 December 30 December

2013 2012
£m £m
Dernvative financial liabilities 0.6 1.7
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's bank loans of A$59 2m (£31 9m) (2012 A$60 Om (£38 5m)) bear interest based upon Reuters
quoted market bid rates at the time of drawdown for the applicable drawdown periad, plus a margin The
bank loans are subject to terms and condiions which include quarterly mandatory prepayments from excess
cash flow subject to adequate working capital continuing to be avaiable which would accelerate the
repayment schedule set out below under qudity sk The Company Is prohibited from paying dividends,
under the terms of the Syndicated Facility Agreement, without the approval of its bankers

The Zero Coupon Loan Notes of nominai £5 1m (2012 £10 2m), which fall due in September 2021, bear no
interest, but the loan note agreement provides for the issue of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes of up to
£125m (2012 £2 5m) in nonnal value If the Group achieves certain EBITDA and enterprise value targets
(See below for nformation on the fair value attributed to the Zero Coupon Loan Notes and the embedded
dervative ) In the 2013 Refinancing £5 1m nominal of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for £5 1m
of 8% Loan Notes All 8% loan note issue agreements include a mandatory clause to convert the loan notes
to preference shares at the value of £2 for every £1 of loan note plus any interest charged to the pont of
conversion As the intention upon issue of the 8% loan notes was always to convert to preference shares
they have been treated as equity and therefore are not classed as financial Instruments

It 1s, and has been throughout the penod under review, the Group's policy that no trading In financia!
mstruments shall be undertaken

The Group’s activities expose 1t to a variety of financial nsks market rnisk (including currency nsk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest risk), credit nsk and lquidity sk The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these nisks and they are summarised below

(a) Market nsk
{1} Foreign exchange risk

The Group had a term loan of A$59 2m outstanding as at 29 December 2013 {2012 A$60 Om} which
exposes the Group to currency nsk The foan has been held within the sub-group in Australia since the time
of the Refinancing in September 2011 and so forms part of the A$ net assets of that sub-group The impact
of movements of the exchange rate of the A$ against Sterling on net assets passes through the translation
reserve The other assets are treated in the same manner

There is an A$ denommated inter-company loan account between Healthcare Locums Limited and the
Australian sub-group which gives rise to exchange gains and losses booked in finance costs In the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income As at 28 December 2013 the amount of A$12 2m
(2012 A$10 6m) was recorded as a recetvable balance in Healthcare Locums Limited At 29 December
2013 the rate of exchange was £1 = A$1 8459 (2012 £1 = A$1 5562)

As at 29 December 2013, 49% (2012 57%) of the total assets of the Group were held in subsidiary
companies outside the UK and denominated In currencies other than Sterling, principally in A$. Group policy
is not to hedge the net investments in foreign operations as 1t does not consider that the reduction in foreign
currency exposure warrants the cash flow nisk created fram such hedging techniques

If Sterling had been 10% stronger against the A$ during the year ended 29 December 2013, with all other
variables held constant, the post tax loss for the year would have been £1 08m lower (2012 post tax loss
£1 7m lower)

If Sterling had been 10% stronger against the A$ during the year ended 29 December 2013, with all other
variables held constant, the credit to other comprehensive mcome would have been £1 86m lower (2012
£0 8m greater credif)

(i) Interest rate risk

Market nsk also anses from the Group’s use of interest bearing financial instruments, which expose the
Group to interest rate nsk The Group finances its operations through a mix of equity, bank debt and loan
notes Interest rate risk ansing due to the Group’s borrowings In A$ at floating rates of interest 1s mitigated,
by agreement with the lenders, by interest rate instruments that generate a desired nsk profile o manage
the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations The Syndicated Facilities Agreement requires a hedge
programme to be In place to convert part of the interest to fixed from floating rates. At 29 December 2013
61 8% of the A$ floating rate (2012 59.8% of the A$ floating rate) interest exposure had been swapped to a
fixed rate The hedge offers protection to the Group should A$ market interest rates move over 6 14%
(2012 6 14%) The last rollover of the A$ borrowings prior to the year-end was based on market rates of

2 65% (2012 318%)

Hedge accounting has not been applied to the swap nstruments and therefore they are measured at fair
value through profit and loss 2013 £0 6m (2012 debit of £0 2m) has been made to the Consoldated
Statement of Comprehensive Income to reflect the movement in the fair value of these msfruments in 291 3
{Note B) At 29 December 2013 no changes in fair values of financial instruments were recorded 1n equity
(2012 none)
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As of the close of business on 29 December 2013 interest rate exposure was limited to the unhedged

38 2% of the A$59m of borrowings (2012 40 2% of A$60m), 1e on A$22 5m (£122m) {2012 AS24 1m
(£15 9m)), offset by the cash balances of £4 9m (2012 £9 3m) which earn floating rate interest Income The
impact of a 1% change n interest rates 1s, therefore, not significant

(b) Credit nsk

Credit risk anses principally from the Group’s trade recewables and 1s the risk that the customer fails to
discharge its obligations In respect of the mstrument The Group’s exposure to credit risk 1s considered to be
insignificant due to the heavy weighting of its customer base in the UK towards NHS Trusts, Local
Authorities and other Gavernment institutions and in Australta to public hospitals and health providers
Pnivate sector customers are subject to credit checking procedures prior to commencing trade with them
The quality, and hence the low nisk, of the customer base 1s also shown by the small amounts of overdue
debt None of the overdue balances of the Group are considered impaired

The Group transacts with counterparties which It considers to be creditworthy Surplus cash is placed ina
Liquidity Fund managed by Scottish Widows (a member of the Lloyds Bank Group) which reduced the credit

nsk

Uptot 1to2

month months >2 months

Current overdue overdue overdue

Trade debtors - 29 December 2013 £10.0m £4.1m £2 4m £0 2m
% of trade debt per ageing category —
29 December 2013 59.9% 24.6% 14.4% 1.2%
Trade debtors - 30 December 2012 £15 0m £2 6m £0 3m £nil
% of trade debt per ageing category — 30
December 2012 83.8% 14 5% 17% 0 0%

(c) Liquidity nsk

Liqudity nsk anses from the Group’s management of working capital and the finance charges and principal
repayments on its debt instruments The Board receives regular cash flow projections

Liquidity nsk anses principally from the volume of revenue forecast and the potential for adverse outcomes

in litigation,

The factors considered by the Board in assessing going concern are set out in Note 3(c) and the Financial

Review

The Group has a Liquidity Fund account managed by Aberdeen Asset Fund
day access to the deposited funds The Liquidity Fund 1s rated AAA by S&P,
that a minimum of 50% of the portfolio should be composed of A-1+ (or equivalent) 1
the fund to maintain a AAA rating The methodology S&P applies to calculate the A-

Liquidity Funds provide same
whose rating cniteria stipulates

nstruments in order for
1+ percentage counts

A-1 (or equivalent) rated instruments matuning in seven days or less towards the A-1+ percentage

minimums, as historical default rates on A-1 paper matunng within seven d

rates of A-1+ 1ssuers. By using such Funds counterparty nsk for the Group

a wide range of counterparties

ays are similar to the default
is reduced as the Fund mvests In
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Gross, undiscounted liabilities are due as follows:

Due within Due in Due in Over
1year 1to2years 2 to 5 years 5 years
Em £m £m £m
2013 Non-derivative financial
instruments - cutflows
Long and short term borrowings 3.5 325 - 17
Trade and other payables excluding
deferred income 14.0 - - -
17.7 325 - 1.7
Derivative financial instruments - net
outflows - - - -
Total 177 325 - 1.7
2012 Non-derivative financial instruments
- outflows
Long and short term borrowings 49 103 311 102
Finance leases 01 - - -
Trade and other payables excluding
deferred mcome 16.3 - _ - -
213 103 311 102
Denvafive financial instruments - net
outflows - 17 - -
Total 213 120 31 102

The above tables summanse undiscounted cash flows based on the financral habilities of the Group
cutstanding at the year-end and assuming ne changes mn interest rates from the year-end rates There are
no financial habilties payable on demand

Fair value estimation.

In the opinion of the Board, the carrying amount of the financial assets and labilibes of the Group
approximate therr fair values As noted above, the only other financial mstruments that are measured at farr
value through profit and loss are interest rate swaps There are no financial assets or hiabiliies held for
trading purposes or any Investments classified as available-for-sale

£10,212,500 of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were 1ssued to Ares Lux as part of the Refinancing in September
2011 £5,106,250 of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for 8% Loan Notes on 4 June 2013 The
remainder are repayable i normal circumstances in September 2021, or earlier In the event of another
refinancing or a change of control of the Group. Tha Directors have discounted the Zero Coupon L.oan
Notes at 15%, a rate between the cost of the Group’s senior debt and the cost of equity immediately after
the Refinancing giving a fair value at the time of 1ssue of £2,505,115 The imputed interest is charged to
finance expenses from the date of 1ssue untll the repayment date The charge in the year ended 29
December 2013 was £321,118 (2012 £392,754) The Loan Notes contain an embedded dervative as
additional Loan Notes, up to a maximum value of £1,250,000 (2012 £2 500,000), will be issued If the Group
achieves certain EBITDA targats in the years ended 31 Dacember 2013 and/or 2014, or if the Enterprise
Value at 31 December 2013 and/or 31 December 2014 andfor 31 December 2015 exceeds certain target
amounts No value has been attributed by the Directors to the embedded denvatve at the time of 1ssus, at

30 December 2012 or at 28 December 2013 as the Directors believe it s unlikely that these targets will be
met

The movements in the balance dunng the year were as follows £_
At 30 December 2012 3,011,113
Financing cost to 4 June 2013 190,567
At 4 June 2013 3,201,680
£2,106,250 nominal exchanged for 8% Loan Notes (1,600,840)
Financing cost to 29 December 2013 130,551
At 29 December 2013 1,731,391
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on information denved from respective bankers' quotes and as
such they fall into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy The fair value of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes is based
on management judgement and as such falls into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Capital nsk management

The Group considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital, share premium, other reserves and
accumulated retained earnings In managing its capital the Group’s long-term objective is to ensure s
continued ability to provide a growing return for its equity shareholders through a combination of capital

growth and distnbutions

The facilties provided by the Group’s bankers onginally included a number of financial covenants During
2012 the financial covenants were renegotiated and the previous covenants relating to interest cover and
leverage (debt to EBITDA) were replaced by covenants relating to EBITDA targets The first testing of the
covenants was at 30 December 2012 and the Group passed the test The subsequent covenant test, which
would have taken place at the end of March 2013, was cancelled as one of the changes to the Syndicated
Facility Agreement agreed prior to the announcement of the bid by Angel Acquisitions Limited New
covenants relating to EBITDA targets are now in place and the first testing took place at 29 December 2013

This covenant test was passed

21 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
29 December 30 December 29 December 30 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
Number '000  Number ‘000 £m £m
Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 847,799 847,799 B4.8 848
Preference share captal
Preferance shares of 10p each 205,160 - 205 -

Allotted, called up and fully paid

29 December

30 December

29 December

30 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
Number '000  Number '000 £m £m
Equily share capdal
Ordinary shares of 10p each 847,799 847,799 84.8 848
Preference share capital
Preference shares of 10p each 205,160 - 20.5 -

Preference shares of 10p

Number '000 £m
As at 1 January 2013 - )
New preference shares 1ssued on 18 October 2013 (note
20) 205,160 ‘20 5
As at 29 December 2013 205,160 205

Holders of the preference shares shali receive, when the reserves allow, a cumulative 8% dividend The

dividend is payable in the event of winding up, other return of capital, or on redemption The redemption Is
entirely within the discretion of the company and can be defayed until iquidation Consequently as per IAS
32 the preference shares are classed as equity

22 RESERVES

The share premium account represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of the nominal value

of the shares 1ssued

The equity reserve represents the farr value adjustment between the value of preference shares issued and

consideration received

The translation reserve compnses foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations that are integral to the operations of the Group
The retained earnings represent the cumulative profit or loss recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income, as adjusted for subsequent transfers to or from other reserves.
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Claims and litigation

From tme to time the Group and Company are in receipt of claims from customers and employees arnsing
In the normal course of business.

The following disclosures are made in connection with claims or exposures which the Directors consider
could represent material uncertainties

Dismissal of Executive Vice Chairman — Ms. Kate Bleasdale

The former Executlve Vice Chairman was dismissed on 11 March 2011 She subsequently launched legal
proceedings agamnst the Company for unfair dismissal, vichimisation and sex discrimmnatien, claiming
damages of £92m An Employment Trbunal was held in Apnl 2012 and all Ms Bleasdale’s claims falled
and her dismissal was held to be non-discnminatory and farr  Legal costs of defending the claim were
expensed as incurred

Ms Bleasdale subsequently asked the Employment Judge for a review of the decision but, after
consideration, this review apphcation faled

Ms Bleasdale then submitted an appeal application to the Employment Appeal Tnbunal {*EAT"} seeking a
review of the Employment Judge's decision The EAT rejected her appeal application following tts own
Initial review of the papers Ms Bleasdale then asked for a preliminary heanng before an EAT judge and
her appeal was allowed to proceed to a full hearing before the EAT After various preliminary and
preparatory hearings, the full appeal was heard in February 2014 Again, all her clams were dlsmlssed.,
Ms Bleasdale has not sought an appeal to date and she has missed the Tribunal’s and Court of Appeal’s
time imits to request the nght to further appeal

Litigation - Permian et al

Proceedings were fited on 12 February 2012 against Healthcare Locums ple (HCL), the Company’s former
Executive Vice Chairman Kathleen V Bleasdale, former Group Finance Director, Diane Jarvis and former
Chairman Alan Walker (“the Defendants™) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York (the US Federal Court) The proceedings were filed by Permian Master Fund, LP, Permian
Investments Partners, LP, Arundel Capital LLC, Arunde! Lang Fund L, Arundet Hedge Fund LP, Privet
Capital, LLC and Flinn Investments, LLC {"the Plantifis”)

The Summons alleged that the Plaintiffs were induced to invest in and/or retain securities issued by HCL
or instruments linked to those securities on the basis of knowing or reckless misrepresentations by the
Defendants conceming the Company's accounting practices and operating results The Complaint alleged
that, as a consequencs, the Plaintiffs had sufferad substantial damages by virtue of the suspension of the
shares and the substantial decline in the prices of HCL secunties and mstruments linked thereto

On 26 March 2012 notice was received that the claims against Kathleen V Bleasdale had been dismissed
without prejudice In June 2012 the Company learned that the proceedings had been dismissed
voluntanly by the Plaintiffs No pnor notice was given to the Company and no explanation has been given
by the Plaintiffs as to their reasons for seeking voluntary dismissal

In July 2012 proceedings were commenced, in substantially the same form, against Healthcare Locums
plc, Alan Walker and Diane Jarvis, in the Supreme Court of the State of New York (the New York State
Court)

The Complant requests a tna! by jury and the Plaintiffs seek rescission and or compensatory damages
(including interest thereon) Whilst the information provided Is insufficient to enable the Board to assess
the quantum of the compensatory damages clamed, the Plaintiffs seek to assertaloss in the value of
their Investments and assert that they spent 1 the region of £13m purchasing therr Investments The
Plaintiffs also seek an award for punitive damages for each claim to the maximum extent allowable by US
law together with an award of costs and such other relief as the US Court may deem just and proper The
Board are unable to quantrfy this further element of the claim.

The Company has been advised by English Leading Counsel and by Australian Counsel that if the
Plaintiffs continue the US proceedings and secure a default jJudgment it 1s highly unlikely that any )
judgment would be recognised or enforceable in erther the UK or Australia because of lack of junsdiction
inthe US in amving at that conclusion, regard was had (amongst other things) to the following
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

{a) The Company was incorporated in England with its shares Iisted and traded on AlM, a part of the
London Stock Exchange

(b) Its actions were governed by English law and the listing and trading of its shares on the London
Stock Exchange were regulated by the rules of that exchange

(¢) The former directors named as defendants in the proceedings were directors of an English company
and their powers, duties, obhigations and habiliies were regulated by English law

{d) None of the former directors is resident in the US
() The subject matter of the alleged acts related to events in England

(i}  Atthe time the proceedings were 1ssued, the Company did not eperate in the US and had no assets
in the US

Having considered the matter very carefully with the Company's legal advisors the Beard decided In
August 2012 that the Company would not submit to the US junisdiction by filing a defence

Accordingly, our legal advisors wrote In August 2012 to the Plaintiffs’ US counset confirming that the
Company did not propose to respond to the US proceedings and informing them that, If they wished to
pursue a claim, they should do so in the proper forum, namely, the English High Court of Justice The
Plaintiffs' US counsel were also informed that the Board considered the underlying claim to be wholly
without merit and that if proceedings were commenced In the proper forum they would be strenuously
defended In September 2013 default judgment was obtained against the Company It is noted that one of
the defendant’s to the claim, the former chairman of the Company, Alan Walker, participated in the
Iiigation and he was able to have the proceedings aganst him dismissed on grounds similar to those
referred to above As at fhis date, the Company Is aware that a $7.1m liability sum has been registered
agamst it by the plantiff Privet Capital and a $13 1m judgement has been registered against it by Permian.
As the Company has not submitted to the US junisdiction or participated in the ktigation, it 1s not aware if
further sums have been registered against it by any of the other claimants The Board continue to held the
opinion that the claims are without merit

Potential claim - Ms. Kate Bleasdale

On 16 April 2013 the Board received a letter from solicitors instructed by Ms Bleasdale, the former

Executive Vice Chairman of the Company, giving notice of a potential claim pursuant to section 994 of the

Companies Act 2006 The letter alleged that Ms Bleasdale's position as a shareholder of HCL had been

unfairly prejudiced by virtue of the events that led to the suspension of trading in HCL's shares mn January

2011 and the subsequent restructunng in September 2011

Amgongst other things, Ms, Bleasdale clamed

{a) She was not responsible for the events that led to the financial misstatements

(b) The Board's declsion in January 2011 to suspend trading in the Company's shares was
unreasenable and unnecessary

{c) The refinancing plan favoured the larger shareholders at the expense of smaller sharehalders

(d) In supporting the refinancing plan, the Board acted unreasonably and contrary to the interests of the
Company and, in particular, failed to consider and/or pursue alternative refinancing options

As a result of these actions, Ms Bleasdale asserted that HCL should purchase her current shareholding at

a pnice of £1 12 per share being the share price immediately pror to its suspension in January 2011, a

cost of approxamately £2 24m

Having taken legal advice, the Board considers that Ms Bleasdale’s clatm 1s wholly without ment and the

Company’s legal advisers have written to Ms Bleasdale's solicitors explaiming why that 1s the case In this

response if was noted that

(a) The factual account set out by the solicitors for Kate Bleasdale is not consistent with the overall
findings of the Employment Tnbunal that heard her unsuccessful claim for unfair dismissal,
discrimination and whistle blowing

(b} The Company had no alternative but to suspend the shares given the discovery of serious financial
rregulanties and the suspension of two of ifs senior executives
{(c) There were no other realistic altematives to the refinancing proposal put forward

(d) The ssue of whether there were realistic altematives to the refinancing proposal was also subject to
vigorous debate at the General Meeting held on 12 September 2011 Ms Bleasdale and her
associates attended that meeting and were given ample opportunty to put forward opposing
arguments Having done so, the shareholders nevertheless voted in favour of the restructuring plan
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The Company is confident of its pesttion in respect of these claims and no provision has been made in the
Financial Statements for future legal costs or for any settlement or adverse determination ansing from this
liigation

Other contingent liabilities
Managed service and Umbrella companies

The Board had taken external advice 1n 2011 from Grant Thornton UK LLP as to whether any financtal
exposure right exist from sourcing locums through “Umbrella” and/or Managed Service Companies HCL
has recruited through a small number of companies which Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (“‘HMRC")
could seek to argue were Managed Service Companies. If such arguments were successful this could
leave the Group at nisk of claims from HMRC for unpaid Income Tax and/or National Insurance should a
Managed Service Company become insolvent with debts owing to HMRC In respect of locums who had
worked through HCL. Whilst the Board Is unaware of any Umbrella Company being in arrears with
payments to HMRC in respect of any locums provided from such companies, a residual nsk remamns

The company aperates self-billing arrangements for a large part of the locum workforce which enables the
group to obtain a VAT deduction but which requires the supplier to account for VAT accordingly There
are a number of requirements assoctated with the operation of seif-billing arrangements to obtan the VAT
deduction Should these requirements not be met there may be a contingent habilty in respect of the VAT
deduction claimed.

As well as the specific material contingent liabilities set out above, the Group's prncipal risks and
uncertainties are set out in the statement on Principal Risks and Uncertainties on page 5

24 PENSIONS

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemss in the UK and Australia There were no
outstanding or prepaid contrbutions at either the beginning or end of the financial year

25 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

As at 29 December 2013 the Group had total commutments under non-cancellable operating leases as set
out below.

Land and buildings Other

29 December 30 December 29 December 30 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

QOperating Lease commitments

payable:

Under 1 year 2.2 26 0.1 02
1-2 years 2.7 25 0.1 01
2-3years 34 48 - 01
Over 5 years 1.4 31 - -
9.7 130 02 04

The leases on land and buildings range from mne months to eight years and five months i length The
operating leases described as "other” are mainly for cars and normally have a ifetime of three years.
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

One Director who served during the prior year, Bill Jessup who was Interim Chief Financial Officer until 19
Apnil 2012, provided his services through his management company Corporate Navigator Limited The
amounts paid to the company for services provided are included tn Note 5 In addition, expenses directly
Incurred in providing his services were billed through the company

During 2013, and 2012, the law firm SNR Denton provided legal services to the Group Mark Andrews,
who was a Director throughout 2012 and until 3 June 2013, was a Partner in SNR Denton until 30 April
2011 and remains a Consuitant Whilst SNR Denton was not a related party at any time In the year or tha
prior year the Board considers the prior business relationship with SNR Denton, before Mark Andrews
Jjoined the Beoard, should be noted here for completeness.

The parent company Angel Acquisitions 1s directly owned by Ares Capital and Tosca fund Therefore any
transactions with these entihes are deemed as related

Ares Capital Europe has charged £20K for the services of Michael Dennis and Daniel Sinclair as Directors
The services of Mark Phillips, who served as a director and is connected to Tosca fund, were also charged
to the accounts totalling £20K

Ares holds the Zero Coupon loan Note included on the balance sheet At 30th December 2012 there was
£10 1M of Zero Coupon Loan Notes farr valued at £3 OM  As a result of the refinancing in June 2013

£5 1M nominal value of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for 8% Loan Notes The fair value of
the remaining Zero Coupon Loan Notes at 29th December 2013 was £1 7M.

The key management personnel, whose costs are disclosed in Note 5, being Directors of the Company are
considered to be related parties Note 5 includes all the relevant disclosures of those related party costs

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Until June 4th 2013 the Company had a share option scheme in place The share options in Issua over
ordinary shares of 10p as at 29 December 2013 were as follows

Decembi?‘ 29 December Exercise
2012 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2013 price
Expiry
Issue date No '000 No 000 No "000 No '000 No '000 (pence) date
May 2008 48 - - (48) - 112 50 May 2018
Dec 2010 100 - - (100) - 9850 _ Dec 2020
Total 148 - - (148) -

The vesting penod for share options issued during 2005 1s one year The vesting period for all share options
issued since 2006 is three years None of the share options 1ssued contained any performance criteria
parameters, and all are equity settled

The total number of share options exercisable at 290 December 2013 was nil {2012 48,200). The weighted
average exercise price at 29 December 2013 was 0p (2012 112 5p).

No share options were granted or exercised in 2013 or 2012 At no time during 2013, pnor to the shares
being delisted on 3 June 2013, was the share price above the lowest option price

For the share options In use at 30/12/2012 the weighted average contractual hfe of these options was 86
months

In respect of these share-based paymenis a charge has been debited to the profits of the Group and the
Company for the year of £nil (2012 debit of £14,000)

The company de listed 3 June 2013 and became private At this point the share option scheme was
cancelled

Comparative information for 2012 1s as follows

1 January 30 December Exercise
2012 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2012 price
Issue date No ‘000 No '000 No'000  No'000 No'000  {pence) Expiry date
Apr 2005 4 - - (4) - 10 00 Apr 2015
May 2008 72 - - (24) 48 11250 May2018
Dec 2010 100 - - - 100 98 50 _Dec 2020
Total 176 - - (28) 148




28 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Restructuring of bank loan

On 1 August 2014 the Group received loans totaling £16 1M from the shareholders of Its parent company
Angel Acquisitions Tosca Opportunity (“Tosca™) loaned £9 1M and Ares Capital Europe {Luxembourg)
Sarl ("Ares”) loaned £7 OM These loans bear interest at 5% with the ophion for the Company fo elect to
roll interest into the capital amount, in which case the interest rate is 6% The repayment date is 31
December 2017 The loans were applied to pay down part of the bank loans provide cash-backing for
certain guarantees and cover related professional fees

Tosca and Ares purchased the remaming bank loan and extended its terms The remaining loan Is now
repayable by 31 December 2017 and bears interest of 5% above Base Rate, unless the Group chooses
to capitalise the interestnto the loan rather than pay It, In which case the interest rate 1s 6% above Base
Rate

Asslgnment of lease

On 4 Apnl 2014 Healthcare Locums Ltd assigned the lease on a property in London to a third party The
lease had a termunation date of 11 March 2020 and an annual rental of £444 465




Heaithcare Locums Ltd

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 29 DECEMBER 2013

29 December

30 December

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 31 1.3 05
Property, plant and equipment 3z 0.4 04
Investmenis 33 5.6 56
73 65
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 35 98 0 46 5
Cash and cash equivalents 2.5 52
100.5 517
Total assets 107 8 58 2
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 36 (76 0) (24 2)
Provisions for lablities 37 {02) (0 2)
(76 2) (24 4)
Total assets less current liabilities 31.6 338
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Zero coupon loan notes 38 {17 (30)
Provisions for labilities 37 0.4) (09)
21 {39)
NET ASSETS 29.5 298
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 39 105.3 848
Share premium account 40 55.2 552
Share option reserve 40 - 12
Equity reserve 40 {12.9) -
Retained loss 40 (118.1) {111 3)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 295 2090

The Noies are an integral part of these Financla! Statements

The Financial Statements of Healthcare Locums Limited, registered number 04736913, were approved and
authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 03 December 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

b e

Michael Dennis
Director
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29 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The policies adopted are consistent with those appiled in the preparation of the audited accounts for the 52 |
weeks ended 29 December 2013 ‘

The following principal accounting policies have been applied |
(@) Turnover

Tumover represents the amounts earned from the provision of services to external customers durnng the
reporting perniod ~ the fime of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and when 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company Turmover I1s
stated at nvoiced amounts less value added tax or local taxes on sales, plus revenue earned but unbitled
which 1s included as accrued incoma In recewvables

» Turnover from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff,
s recognised when the services have been provided Turnover includes the salary costs of the temporary
staff unless paid directly by the client in which ¢ase turnover represents commission only

« Turnover from permanent placements is recognised at the date when a candidate commences work.
Appropnate provision Is made for the expected cost of meeting obligations where employees do not work
for the specified contractual penod

(b) Depreciation I
Depreciation 1s provided to wnte off the cost, less astimated residual values, of all intangible and tangible

fixed assets, evenly over their expected useful lives ltis calculated at the following rates
Improvements to leasehold

buildings -~ Term of lease
Office and computer equipment - 3to8years
Computer software - 3tobyears

(c) Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be pald or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date

In accordance with FRS 19, deferred tax 1s provided in full an timing differences which result in an
obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates
expected to apply when they crystallise based on current rates and law Timing differences anse from the
inclusion of items of Income and expenditure in taxation computations in penods different from those In
which they are included In financial statements Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and habilities are not \
discounted

(d) Valuation of investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provisien for impairment.
(e} Goodwill

Purchased goodwill in respect of the acqulsitions of trade and assets of a business Is capitalised Goodwill
is amortised to nil by equal annual instalments over its estimated useful life

(f) Impairment

The Directors carry out impairment reviews annually or whenever an indication of Impalrment has been
identified. Impairment charges are recorded mn the Profit and Loss account

The valuation of mvestments in subsidiary undertakings 1s calculated by reference to estimated future cash
flows of the relevant company discounted using an appropriate, risk adjusted, rate

For the year ended 29 December 2013 the Company made estimates that are more fully described in Note
33

(g) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approxtmating to ownership (finance
leases"), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright The amount capitalised 1s the
present valua of the minimum lease payments payable during the lease term. The corresponding leasing
commitments are shown as amounts payable to the lessor Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
to the Profit and Loss account

Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the interest element of the
payment is charged to the Profit and L.oss account over the period of the lease and represents a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding The capital part reduces the amounts
payable to the lessor

All ofher leases are treated as operating leases Their annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
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29 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Foreign exchange

Turnover ganerated and costs incurred by the Company in a currency other than the currency of the
primary economic environment m which it operates 1s recorded at the rates ruling when the fransactions
occur Foreign currency monetary assets and habilities are retranslated at the rates ruling at each balance
sheet date Exchange differences arising are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss account.

(I} Share-based employee remuneration

Unti! 3rd June 2013 the Group operated an equity-settied, share-based compensation plan When share
options were awarded to employees a charge was made to the Profit and Loss account recognising the fair
value of the options lssued over the vesting period The options vest after a specific period {3 years for
options issued in 2006 to 2010, 1 year for options ssued earlier) There are no other vesting canditions,
other than that the options lapse should the employes leave the Group The cumulative expense Is
adjusted for fallure fo achieve non-market vesting conditions, such as an employee leaving

Management charges are levied on subsidiary undertakings which take into account the share-based
compensation plan charges or cradits

The credit entry for this charge 1s taken to the share option reserve and reported n the reconcilation of
movements In shareholders’ funds

(j} Pension costs

Contributions to the Company's defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss
account i the year in which they become payable

(k) Financial instruments

The Company uses interest rate swap instruments to manage the Group’s interest rate nsk These
financial Instruments are not recognised on the Balance Sheet of the Company Receipts or payments
resulting from these interest rate instruments are accounted for within Profit and Loss m the penod durnng
which the receipts or payments arise

(i} Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group policy for provisions and contingent liabilities, as set out in Note 3{q). applies equally to the
Company which has tha same policy

30 LOSS FOR THE YEAR
The loss after tax for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the Company amounts to £6 8m

(2012 £25 4m) As allowed by the provisions of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has
not published its own Profit and Loss account
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31 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Purchased Computer
Goodwill software Total
£m £m £m
Cost*
At 1 January 2012 27 05 32
Additions - 05 05
Writen off 27 - (27}
Reclassification - {0 2) 02y
At 30 December 2012 - 0.8 0.8
Additions - 0.9 09
At 29 December 2013 - 1.7 17
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 27 02 29
Provided for the year - a1 01
Written off 27 - (27)
At 30 December 2012 - 0.3 0.3
Provided for the year - 0.1 0.1
At 29 December 2013 - 0.4 0.4
Net book value:
At 29 December 2013 - 1.3 13
At 30 December 2012 - 05 05
32 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
improvements Office and
to leasehold computer
buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost;
At 1 January 2012 04 08 12
Additions 01 01 0.2
Disposals 02 {0.2) (0 4)
At 30 December 2012 0.3 0.7 1.0
Additions - 0.1 01
Disposals - {0.1) {0.1)
At 29 December 2013 0.3 0.7 10
Depreciation.
At 1 January 2012 g1 06 07
Provided for the year - 01 01
Disposals {01) {0.1) (0.2)
At 30 December 2012 - 0.6 0.6
Provided for the year - 0.1 0.1
Disposals - (0.1) {0.1)
At 29 December 2013 - 0.6 0.6
Net book value:
At 29 December 2013 0.3 0.1 0.4
At 30 December 2012 03 01 04




33 INVESTMENTS

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
Em
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 565
Reduction in deferred consideration 1)
At 30 December 2012 56 4
At 29 December 2013 56 4
impairment.
At 1 January 2012 480
Charged in the year 1.8
At 30 December 2012 50.8
At 29 December 2013 50.8
Net book value
At 29 December 2013 56
At 30 December 2012 586

The structure of the Group has remained the same since the restructure in 2012 so that each main
segment operates through a single company, save the off framework business for all segments operates

through a separate company As such eac

h segment completes 1t own budgets and forecasts which are

used to assess the forecast future cash flows, and hence the valuation, of the subsidiary undertakings. That

exercise has been completed, using the same methodology adopted In assessing the value In use of the
UK goodwi!l and intangible fixed assets as disclosed in Note 11 and as a result there was no requirernent to

impair the investments
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34 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The principal undertakings in which the Company has an interest at the year-end are as follows

Name
HCL Doctors Limited

HCL Healthcare Limited
HCL Nursing Limited

HCL Social Care Limited

JCJ Lacums Limited

HCL Permanent Limited
HCL Managed Services Limited
MPS Healthcare Limited

Recruitmant Speclalist Group Limited
HCL GPs Limited

HCL International Pty Limited

Healthcare Australla Holdings Pty
Limited ("HCA")

Healthcare Australia Pty Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)
(¢}

Nature of business

On framework supply of professional health services of
statutonly registered doctors

On framework supply of professional health services of
health professionals and ancillary staff

On framework supply of professional health services of
statutonly registered nurses

On framework supply of professional health services of
social workers

Off framework supply of professional health services of

statutorily registered doctors, nurses, social workers, health

professionals and ancillary staff

Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basis
Supply of managed services to the healthcare market
Supply of professional health services of statutorily
registered medical staff

Holding company

Supply of professtonal health services of statutonly
registered doctors

Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basis
Holding company for Austrahan subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiary of Healthcare Australia Holdings Pty
Ltd

Acclaim Recruitment Pty Limited {d) Nursing Agency
ASEPS Pty Limited {d} Nursing Agency
Care Services Admin Pty Limited {d) Admn staff for the business
Goongee Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
Malvern Payroll Management {d) Nursing Agency
Services Pty Limited

NT Medic Pty Limited {d) Nursing Agency
Nursing Agency Australia Pty Limited  (d) Nursing Agency
PNS (PCC} Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
PNS (Staffing Synergy) Pty Limited {d} Nursing Agency
PNS (Vic) Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
Select Unit Trust {d) Nursing Agency

All subsidianes are 100% owned by HCL other than those marked
(a) owned 100% by Blue Group International Holdings Limited,

{b) cwned 100% by JCJ Group
Limited,

(¢} owned 100% by HCL International Pty Limited, and

(d) owned 100% by HCA

All 100% share ownerships also represent 100% of the voting nghts

All subsidianies operate i the United Kingdom and are registered in England and Wales other than HCL

International Pty Limited and subsidiaries thereof which are registered in Australia The table above
excludes dormant subsidianies in the United Kingdom and United States. Alf companies have been
included n the consolidated results of the Group
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34 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS {continued)

The following subsidianes are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the
audit of Individual accounts by virtue of $479A of that Act

Name Registered number
HCL Doctors Limited 3069773
HCL Heaithcare Limited 3496076
HCL Nursing Limited 5080817
HCL Social Care Limited 3710864
JCJ Locums Limited 5790018
HCL Permanent Limited 5790004
HCL Managed Services Limited 2273072
MPS Healthcare Limited 3989591
Recruitment Specialist Group Limited 3216930
HCL GPs Limited 5130842
Nurselink Worldwide Limited 5804412
JC,J Group Limited 4469671
MJV Locums Limnited 7305911
BBL Medical Recriitment Limited 5716382
JCJ Holdings Limtted 4402407
HCL Dubai Limited 5755169

Blue Group Intemational Holdings Limited 4171692

The above subsidianes' outstanding iabtities at 29 December 2013 had been guaranteed by the
Company pursuant to sections 479A-C of the Act

35 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Other debiors 0.1 01
Prepayments 0.9 12
Amounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 97.0 452
98 0 46 5

The receivables have been impaired by £6 9m which 1s largely from an adjustment agamnst the MPS
subsidiary This company Is expected to be sold towards the end of 2014 and the balances have been
providad for as the consideration expected will be less than their value

The net amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest
All other amounts shown within trade and other recevables fall due for payment within one year

36 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade creditors 0.1 06
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 734 201
Other taxes and social secunty 0.4 0.4
Accruals 2.3 25
Other creditors (0.2) 06
76.0 242

All amounts due to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest
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37 PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Onerous Onerous Total Deferred
contracts leases provislons consideration
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 04 15 19 0.9
Paid dunng the year 01 (0 4) (0 5) (08)
Agreed reduction in consideration - - - {01
Charged / {credited) to profit & loss - (03) (03) -
At 30 December 2012 0.3 08 1.1 -
Paid during the year - - - -
Charged / (credited) to profit & loss {0.3) {0 2) {0 5) -
At 29 December 2013 - 0.6 06 -
At 29 December 2013
Current - 0.2 02 -
Non-current - 0.4 0.4 — -
At 30 December 2012
Current - 02 02 -
Non-current 03 06 09 -

At the ime of the Refinancing of the Company in September 2011, the Company was obliged to enter nto
two interest rate swaps with a far value loss of £0 4m at inception These onerous contracts have no
purpose, are not held for either trading or investment and therefore a provision has been recorded for the
expected loss as an onerous contract The interest rate swaps were settled dunng the year

There are two contracts, each with principal amounts of £2,720,000, The Company pays a fixed rate of
3.305% and receives floating rate Interest, based on LIBOR, in return The contracts have expired

38 ZERO COUPON LOAN NOTES

29 December 30 December

2013 2012

Em £m

Farr value at the beginning of the year 3.0 26
Fair value of notas 1ssued . -
Farr value of notes redeemed (16) -
Imputed interest In the year 0.3 04
Fair value at the end of the year 1.7 30

£10,212,500 of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were 1ssued to Ares Lux as part of the Refinancing in September
2011 £5,106,250 of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for 8% Loan Notes on 4 June 2013 The
remainder are repayable in normal circumstances in September 2021, or earlier m the event of another
refinancing or a change of control of the Group The Directors have discounted the Zero Coupon Loan
Notes at 15%, a rate between the cost of the Group's senior debt and the cost of equity immediately after
the Refinancing giving a fair value at the time of issue of £2,505,115 The imputed interest 1s charged to
finance expenses from the date of 1ssue until the repayment date The charge in the year ended 29
December 2013 was £321,117 (2012 £392754) The Loan Notes contain an embedded denvative as
additional Loan Notes, up to a maximum value of £1,250,000 (2012 £2,500,000), which will be 1ssued if the
Group achieves certain EBITDA targets In the years ended 31 December 2013 andfor 2014, or if the
Enterprise Value at 31 December 2013 and/or 31 December 2014 and/or 31 December 2015 exceeds
certain target amounts No value has been attributed by the Directors to the embadded derivative at the
time of Issue, at 30 December 2012 or at 29 December 2013 as the Directors believe it is unlikely that
these targets will be met
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39 SHARE CAPITAL

All details of the allotted, called up and fully paid share capital, plus the movements during the prior year,

are set out in Note 21 to the Group Financial Statements

40 RESERVES

Share Share Profit and

premium option Equity loss

account reserve reserve account

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2012 552 12 - (85 8)
Loss for the year - - - (254)

At 30 December 2012 552 1.2 - (111.3)

Profit/(loss) for the year - - (12.9) (8.0)

Share option reserve transferred - (1.2) 1.2

At 29 December 2013 552 - (12.9} (118.1)

41 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

§2 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

29 30

December December

2013 2012

£m £m

Loss for the year (6 8) (254)

Loan notes classified as equity and then converted to preference shares 6.6 -

Lean notes classified as equity 1.0 -

Share option reserve cessation (1.2) -

Add_Opening shareholders’ funds 29.9 553

Closing shareholders' funds 295 299

43 PENSIONS

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme There were no outstanding or prepaid

contribubions at erther the beginning or end of the financial year

44 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

As at 29 December 2013, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set

out below

Land and buildings

Other

29 December

30 December

28 December

30 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Operating Lease commitments payable:
Under 1 year 0.2 - - 01
1-2 years - - 0.1 "
2-5years 0.2 - - )
Over 5 years 1.0 10 - -
1.4 1.0 0.1 0.1
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45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

See Note 26 to the Group Financial Statements for transactions with and balances due from and to refated
parties All the reported transactions were with the Company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Financial Reporting Standard 8 "Related
Party Disclosures” not to disclose transactions with members of the Group headed by the Company on the
grounds that 100% of the voiing nghts in the other members of the Group are controlled by the Company and the
results of all subsidiary undertakings are included in the Group Financial Statements

45 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Full details on the Company share option scheme are given in Note 27 to the Group Financial Statements

46 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the main matenal contingent liabilties for the Company are set out in Note 23 In addition the Company
is party to the SFA and, as a result, 1s a guarantor of ali borrowings of the Group Details of Group borrowings
are disclosed in Note 17

As set out in Note 34 the Company has guaranteed the llabilitles at 29 December 2013 of the named UK
subsidiary undertakings The amounts recervable from subsidiaries at 28 December 2013, as set cut in Note 35,
have been impaired where there 1s a possibility that full settlement of group indebtedness will not be possible if
external abilites are settied i full

47 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Full details of post Balance Sheet events relevant to the Company are given in Note 28

48 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Angel Acquisitions Ltd, which at 28 December 2013 was the ulimate Parent Company, Angel! Acquisitions Ltd, is
registered in England and Wales The ulimate controling parties are ACE Equity Holdco (Cayman) Ltd (ARES)
and Tosca Opportunity whom are the major sharehoiders of Angel Acquisitions.
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